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(FILEDI J 

,0' :.:. ~ .• \} ~:~'\) IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE MIDDLE DISTRICT OF ALABAMA 

~~-~. JpJ~W~~T' 
~_OfC07~. 

eti~ISTINE HAL~I\' 
DEBOlWi'[~lt~~~~ ,', 

~~~i~j=~~:}~LI~' 
TERESA THOMASON, 
SUSAN W. COLLIER, 
VALERIE PORTER WILLIAMS, 
BETTY DUBOSE and all 
females, collectively, 
employed in Alabama as 
County Veteran Affairs 
Assistants under circum­
stances similar to those 
of the named Plaintiffs 
and the class of all such 
individuals affected by 
salary policies which 
discriminate on the 
basis of gender, 

Plaintiffs, 

vs. 

STATE OF ALABAMA 
DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS 
AFFAIRS AND THE ALABAMA 
STATE PERSONNEL DEPARTMENT, 

Defendants. 
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COMPLAINT 

CLERK ',' 
U. S. DISTRICT COURT 
MIDDLE DIST. OF ALA. : 

CIVIL ACTION NO: J 

j(jl () ,.1",- IlJ ? 1'10 

I. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

1. Plaintiffs, present and former employees of the State of 

Alabama Department of Veterans Affairs, seek de(:laratory and 

injunctive relief, backpay, prejudgment interest upon backpay, 

frontpay, liquidated damages, compensatory damages,. expenses, and 

attorney fees from Defendants arising from Defendant$' violation of 

the rights guaranteed to Plaintiffs under the Equ Pay Act, 29 

U.S.C. Section 206(d) (1) and under the Equal Protection Cause of 
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the united States Constitution and Title VII of the Civil Rights 

Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000(e), et. seg., includ:Lng 42 U.S.C. § 

I 

2000e (5) (f), as amended by the Civil Rights Act of 1 1991, and the 

remedy provided under 42 U.S.C. § 1983. The named Plaintiffs bring 

their equal pay action as a collective action under 29 U.S.C. § 

216(b) on behalf of themselves and other female employees similarly 

situated subject to receiving written consent from all such 

employees to be parties to this action. Finally, the named 

Plaintiffs bring this action as a class action under Title VII on 

behalf of all female employees similarly situated subject to 

perfection of jurisdiction by receipt of notice of right-to-sue 

from the EEOC. 

II. JURISDICTION 

2. This Court has jurisdiction under 28 u. S. C,. Sections 1331 

and 1343 (a) (1) , (3) , (4) . 

3. Plaintiffs' claims are authorized by 29 U.S.C. Sections 

216 (b) and 260, 28 U.S.C. Sections 2201 and 2202 (declaratory 

judgments), and Fed. R. Civ. P. 57, 42 U.S.C. § 2000(e), et. seg., 

and 42 U.S.C. § 1983 and 1988. 

4. Additionally, one or more of the named Plaintiffs have 

filed charges of gender discrimination with the Equal Employment 

Opportunity Commission and will request statutory notices of right-

to-sue. When named Plaintiffs receive the statutpry notices of 

::g::~::~:::~O:h::d:: ITli :e:: I t:~ s t::m;:::: tR:;h:~ lfte 
~e:::: ~i:: 

I 

I 
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amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000(e) et. seg. 

III. PARTIES 

5. Plaintiff Vickie K. Prewett is a fema~e resident of 

Baldwin County, Alabama and is beyond the age of m~jority. 

6. Plaintiff Christine Hale is a female restdent of Dallas 

County, Alabama and is beyond the age of majority. 

7. Plaintiff Deborah Coker is a female resiaent of Butler 

County, Alabama and is beyond the age of majority. 

8. Plaintiff Vicky Brown is a female reslident of Pike 

County, Alabama and is beyond the age of majority. 

9. Plaintiff Lisa Jackson is a female resident of Montgomery 

County, Alabama and is beyond the age of majority. 

10. Plaintiff Teresa Thomason is a female resi~ent of Colbert 

County, Alabama and is beyond the age of majority. 

11. Susan W. Collier is a female resident of Mobile County, 

Alabama and is beyond the age of majority 

12. Plaintiff Valerie Porter Williams is a fem~l1e resident of 

Russell County, Alabama and is beyond the age of m~.jIority. 

13. Plaintiff Betty Dubose is a female residlent of Bullock 

County, Alabama and is beyond the age of majority. 

14. Defendant State of Alabama, Department of Veterans 

Affairs, is the duly constituted agency of the St~te of Alabama 

created pursuant to Alabama Code § 31-5-1, et. ~. to provide 

assistance to veterans of the United Stated Armed ~Qrces. 

15. Defendant the Alabama State Personnel De rtment is the 
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agency of Alabama created under Alabama Code § 36-26-1, et. seq. 

which administers the State of Alabama personnel and merit system. 
I I 

IV. FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

16. Named Plaintiffs Vickie K. Prewett, Cltu;istine Hale, 

Deborah Coker, Vicky Brown, Lisa Jackson, Valerie Porter Williams 

and Betty Dubose have each been employed for more than three years 

in the position of County Veterans Affairs Assistant (classified as 

Administrative Support Assistant) with Defendant Alalj>c!una Department 

of Veterans Affairs. In that position each of these named Plain-

tiffs performs many duties related to the delivery of counseling 

and other services to citizens of Alabama who are veterans, former 

members of the Armed Services of the United States of America. 

17. Named Plaintiffs Teresa Thomason and Su.an W. Collier 

were employed within the last two years in the position of County 

Veterans Affairs Assistant (classified as administ!rative support 

assistant) with Defendant Alabama Department of Vetierans Affairs. 

In that position they performed many duties related to the delivery 

of counseling and other services to citizens of Alabama who are 

veterans, former members of the Armed Services of th~ United States 

of America. 

18. Throughout the period in which the n~ed Plaintiffs 

enumerated in paragraphs 16 and 17 above have pelrformed these 

duties and continuing to the present date, Defendant~ have employed 

males in the position of "Veteran Service Officer," including one 

such male employed in close proximi ty to each these named 
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Plaintiffs, at a salary level substantially higher than the named 

Plaintiffs. The duties the males perform are essentially the same 
I i 

as the duties of the named Plaintiffs, requirins: equal skill, 

effort and responsibility and performed under s~Jnilar working 

conditions as those performed by the named PlaintiffS. Specifical-

ly, each of the named Plaintiffs have been employed in close 

proximity to a Veteran Service Officer, a male pelrforming equal 

work, who has been compensated and is compensated at a rate as much 

as fifty percent higher than the rate of compenEilation paid by 

Defendants to each named Plaintiff. 

19. On numerous occasions it has been called t~ the attention 

of Defendants that they were compensating female administrative 

assistants, such as the Plaintiffs in the instant litigation, at 

levels considerably below the compensation paid to male Veteran 

Service Officers despite the fact that the two grou~$ of employees 

were performing equal work. However, Defendants have persisted in 

their policy of providing the female administrative aSsistants with 

unequal pay, discriminating against them on acdount of their 

gender, female. 

20. At all times relevant to this litigation Defendants have 

known that Plaintiffs were receiving unequal pay and were being 

discriminated against in salary on the basis of s~x, female, and 

had no reasonable grounds for believing that their action did not 

violate the law, but Defendants have intentionall~ and willfully 

maintained this practice and refused to correct it~ 

21. On November 30, 2000 named Plaintiffs K. Prewett, 
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Christine Hale, Deborah Coker, Vicky Brown, Lisa JiCkSOn, Valerie 

Porter Williams and Betty Dubose filed charges of Idiscrimination 

with the United States Equal Employment Commission addressing the 

sex discrimination described above. Those charges remain pending 

with the United States Equal Employment opportun~ty Commission. 

Those named Plaintiffs will request that the EEO~ expeditiously 
! 

• • I. process the charges and 1ssue to those named Pla1n~1ffs statutory 

notices of right-to-sue at the earliest possible da~e. As soon as 
I 

I 

these named Plaintiffs have received their notices of right-to-sue, 
I 

the notices will be filed with this Court along wi~h an amendment 

to the complaint in the instant lawsuit allegingl perfection of 

jurisdiction under Title VII of the 1964 Civil ~ights Act, as 

amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000(e), et. seg. 
I 

22. As a result of Defendants' discriminato~y practice of 

compensating male Veteran Service Officers at a h~gher rate than 

that of the female administrative support assistlants described 

above, even though males are performing work equal Ito that of the 

I Plaintiffs, and as a result of Defendants' repea~ed failure and 

refusal to rectify this sex discrimination, the Plafntiffs in this 

action, and the Plaintiff Class subsequently descri~ed herein have 

not only been denied the salaries to which they sho*ld be entitled 

but have also incurred severe mental distress, and emotional 

suffering. 

23. Plaintiff Susan W. Collier, and, upon ~nformation and 

belief, other former female County Veteran Affa·.rs Assistants 
I 

employed by Defendants within the last three years, ~ere construc­
I 
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tively terminated by Defendants' policy of grossly underpaying said 

females, by comparison to male Veteran Service Officers, which 

I : 

presented working conditions which would be deemed I~ntolerable to 

a reasonable person and which caused Collier and o~ners to resign 

or retire from those positions as a result of Defend~nts' discrimi-

natory salary policies. 

24. Throughout the State of Alabama and possibly beyond there 

are many present and former female administrative slupport assis-

tants employed by Defendants in proximity to male Veteran Service 

Officers and who are being or have been paid unequal pay under 

circumstances closely similar or identical to those described for 

the named Plaintiffs above. Accordingly, the Plaintiffs, subject 

to the requirements and restrictions of Section 16(b) of the Fair 

Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. § 216 (b), bring this action on 

behalf not only of themselves but on behalf of the other female 

employees similarly situated and suffering from violation of their 

rights under the Equal Pay Act. Attached to this complaint as 

"Exhibit A" are the written consents of the named Plaintiffs to be 

parties in this action. Plaintiffs will be filing' a motion with 

the Court pursuant to the provisions of 29 U.S.C. § 216{b) to 

proceed with contacting all other similarly situated females 

requesting their written consent to become parties in this 

collective action and will amend this complaint a~propriately if 

additional written consents are received. 
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v. COUNT ONE - EQUAL PAY ACT CLAIM 

25. Plaintiffs reaver and incorporate by reference the 

allegations set out in paragraphs 1 through 24 abo~e. 
I 

26. Defendants have discriminated against !~laintiffs by 

paying salaries to Plaintiffs at a rate less than th~ rate at which 

they pay to an employee of the opposite sex for equa~ work on a job 

the performance of which requires equal skill, effor~ and responsi-

bility and which are performed under similar workin~ conditions to 

those experienced by Plaintiffs. Accordingly D~fendants have 

violated the Federal Pay Act, 29 U.S.C. Section 20~Cd) (1). 

27. Defendants' violations of the EDA have b~en intentional 

and willful and Defendants have had no reasonab~$ grounds for 

believing that their actions did not violation the law. 

28. Through the above-described actions df Defendants, 

Plaintiffs have been damaged in that they has been 4enied a proper 

and appropriate salary as described above. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF, EQUAL PAY ACT CLA~MS 

WHEREFORE, the premises considered, Plaintif~s respectfully 

pray: 

1. That this Court upon hearing, issue a declaratory 

judgment that the acts and practices of the Defend~nts, described 

above, have willfully violated Plaintiffs' rights qnder the Equal 

Pay Act, 29 U.S.C. Section 206(d) (1), et. seg. 
I 

2. That this Court, upon hearing, issu~ a permanent 

injunction affirmatively enjoining Defendants fr failing to 
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compensate Plaintiffs at a salary level commensurate with that paid 

to male supervisors performing jobs equal to that performed by 

Plaintiffs. 

3. That this Court, upon hearing, award to ~laintiffs back 

wages pursuant to 29 U.S.C. Section 216 (b) and preju4gment interest 

upon back wages. 

4. That this Court award to Plaintiffs pursuap,t to 29 U. S. C. 

Section 216(b) liquidated damages in amounts equal to the awards of 

backpay, plus prejudgment interest, prayed for above. 

5. That this Court award reasonable fees to ~he Plaintiffs' 

attorneys and litigation expenses pursuant to 29 U.S.C. Section 

216(b) and allow Plaintiffs their costs pursuant to '~d. R. Civ. P. 

54(d), and award such additional or alternative relief as may be 

just, proper and equitable. 

VI. COUNT TWO - CLAIMS UNDER TITLE VII AND 
PROTECTION CLAUSE FOR SEX DISCRIMIN 

29. Plaintiffs reaver and incorporate by reference the 

allegations set out in paragraph 1 through 24 abov~. 

30. In their actions described above, D~fendants have 

intentionally discriminated against Plaintiffs on the basis of 

their sex by intentionally failing and refusing to pay them 

salaries equal to those paid to males performing e~al work. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF, TITLE VII AND EQUAL PROTECltON CLAIM 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully pray this C ~rt to advance 

this case on the docket, order a speedy hearing a the earliest, 
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practical date, and upon such hearing to: 

(A) Grant a preliminary and permanent injunction 

enjoining Defendant, their agent, successors, emplo~1es, attorneys 

and those acting in concert with them at their I ~irection for 
I i 

failing to compensate Plaintiffs at a level equal; to the salary 

Defendants are paying to the highest paid male p~!rforming work 

equal to that of Plaintiffs; and 
i 

(B) Grant Plaintiffs a declaratory jud~ent that the 

policies and practices complained of herein violatelJhe provisions 
I 

of 42 U.S.C. § 2000 (e), et. seg., 42 U.S.C. § 1983i and the Equal 

Protection Clause of the United States constituti09;' and 

(C) Issue injunctive and equitable relil~f determining 
I 

that Plaintiff Susan W. Collier has been constructit~ly terminated 
I 

from her position by Defendants' discriminatory salaW policies and 

reinstate said Plaintiff into her previous Positi~n with proper 

salary or award frontpay to compensate her for her ~~going loss of 

salary incurred as a result of her constructive Itlermination by 

Defendants. 

(D) Award Plaintiffs backpay to compensa~~ them for the 

loss of salary they have incurred by being paid l~ISS than males 

performing equal work; and 

(E) Award Plaintiffs compensatory dama"s for Plain­

tiffs' emotional pain and suffering, inconvenience, IxtLental anguish 

and loss off enjoyment of life; and 
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neys' fees; and 

(G) Grant Plaintiffs such other and further relief as 

equity and justice require. 

CLASS ACTION, TITLE VII AND EQUAL PROTECTIO~ CLAIMS 

31. Named Plaintiffs Vickie Prewett, Christin. Hale, Deborah 

Coker, Vicky Brown, Lisa Jackson, Teresa Thomason, ,Valerie Porter 

Williams and Betty Dubose also bring this actioIlj on their own 

behalf and, pursuant to Rules 23{b) (2) and (3) of th~ Federal Rules 

of Civil Procedure on behalf of a class of P1aintiff~ described as: 
I 

All adult females in Alabama who, at anylij,ime 
I 

since two years before the filing of I the 

present lawsuit have been employed by D~.en­
dants as County Veterans Affairs AssisJ",nts 

I 

(Administrative Support Assistants) doing work 

equal to males employed as Veteran Se:t!'vice 

Officers but receiving lesser, unequal pJy. 
I 

32. The class of persons Plaintiffs seek to ~epresent is so 

numerous that joinder of all members is impractic~l. There are 

questions of law and fact common to the class. p1a~ntiffs' claims 

are typical of those of the class. Plaintiffs Will, in their 

representative capacities fairly and adequate1~ protect the 

interest of the class. 

TITLE VII E UAL PROTECTION CLASS FACTUAL ATIONS 

33. For at least two years prior to the fi1in this action 
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the members of the Plaintiff class, including the named Plaintiffs, 

have been employed as County Veterans Affairs Assistants (Adminis­

trative Support Assistants) in Alabama and have beenl~Oing the same 

work as males employed as Veteran Service Officers ,~ile the males 

have received salaries of approximately fifty perc~nt higher than 
I 

the salaries received by members of the Plaintiff qlass. 

34. Defendants have maintained a discriminato~ salary policy 

and schedule as described above intentionally :and willfully 

discriminating against the members of the Plainbiff class on 

account of their gender, female. 

35. The members of the class have suffered ~~age in that 

they have received discriminatory lower salaries, als compared to 

the male comparators, have been constructively t~pninated from 
I I 

i 

their positions and have also suffered severe menta~ suffering and 

emotional distress. 

PRAYER FOR CLASS RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, the premises considered, the Plaintiff class 

respectfully prays that this Honorable Court: 

(A) Certify this action as a class actiqn with respect 

I to the above-described claims arising under 42 U.S.ie. § 2000 (e), 

§ 1981(a) and § 1983 and the Equal Protection Claus, of the United 

States Constitution and direct issuance of notic~ to all class 

members of the pendency of this action: and 

(B) Upon appropriate hearings grant ;~ declaratory 
i 

judgment that the policies and practices compla' ~ed of herein 
I 
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violate the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 2000{e), et. seg., and the 

Equal Protection Clause of the United States Constiijution and that 

the members of Plaintiff class are entitled to a r~edY under 42 

U.S.C. § 1983; and 

(C) Grant a preliminary and permanep1t injunction 
I 

enjoining Defendants, their agents, successor~, employees, 

attorneys and those acting in concert with the~ or at their 

discretion from failing to compensate all members o~ the Plaintiff 

class at levels equal to the salaries Defendants ar~ paying to the 

highest paid males performing work equal to that of 1m embers of the 

Plaintiff class, reinstating or awarding frontpay tol all members of 
I 

the Plaintiff class who have been constructively tierminated from 

their positions; and 
I 

(D) Award each member of the Plaintiff class backpay to 

compensate her for the loss of salary she has inc~rred by being 

paid less than males performing equal work; and 
I 

(E) Award each member of the Plaintiff clt's compensato-

ry damages for her emotional pain and suffering, inconvenience, 

mental anguish and loss of enjoyment of life ~ccasioned by 

Defendants' discrimination against her on the basis of gender; and 

(F) Award the Plaintiff class its costs ~nd expenses in 

prosecuting this action, including an award of re~sonable attor-

neys' fees; and 
I 

(G) Grant the Plaintiff class such othr~ and further 
I 

relief as justice requires. 

Respectfully submitted this the day of D 2000. 
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OF COUNSEL: 

RHONDA BROWNSTEIN, ESQ. 
ASB-3193-064R 
SOUTHERN POVERTY LAW CENTER 
Post Office Box 2087 
Montgomery, Alabama 36102-2087 

III 

RICHARD L. THIRY 
ASB-1906-R73R ! ! 

THIRY & CADDELL n I 

Attorney for Plai ~iffs 
i : 

HEE.~jc)m 
ASB-9244-L53H 
THIRY CADDELL 
A t. ~t.-.-.~ ~ 

R i: 

Attorney for Plai~~iffS 
I 

i I 

I : 

JURY DEMAND 

Plaintiffs respectfully demand trial by 
triable by jury. 
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ADDRESS OF COUNSEL: 

THIRY & CADDELL 
1911 Government Street 
Mobile, Alabama 36606 
(334) 478-8880 

STEIN & BREWSTER 
Post Office Box 1051 
Mobile, Alabama 36633-1051 
(334) 433-2002 

PLEASE SERVE THE DEFENDANTS BY 
CERTIFIED MAIL AT THE FOLLOWING ADDRESSES: 

DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS 
Post Office Box 1509 
Montgomery, Alabama 36192-3071 

ALABAMA STATE PERSONNEL DEPARTMENT 
64 N. Union Street, Room 300 
Montgomery, Alabama 36130 
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